
Rochester City Council 
 Community Development Committee 

 

MEETING MINUTES 

Elaine Lauterborn, Chairperson 

Donna Bogan, Vice Chairperson 

Tom Abbott 

Jeremy Hutchinson 
James Gray 

Meeting Date: Monday, May 14, 2018 

Members Present: Donna Bogan 
James Gray 
Jeremy Hutchinson 
Elaine Lauterborn 

Members Absent:  
Tom Abbot 

Guests/Staff: Julian Long, Community Development Coordinator 
Barbara Holstein, Rochester Youth Reach, SOS Recovery Center, 
Bridging the Gaps 
John Burns, SOS Recovery Center 
Julie Perron, Bridging the Gaps 
Lisa Stanley, Police Commissioner, Bridging the Gaps Sustainability 
Committee 
Jeff Donald, COAST 
Hannah Lavoie, Rochester Youth Spirit 
Corrine Potter, Rochester Youth Spirit 
Amy Grondin, Rochester Youth Spirit 

 

Councilor Lauterborn called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. Motion was made by 
Councilor Bogan and seconded by Councilor Hutchinson to approve the March 12, 2018 
minutes. The minutes were approved unanimously. 
 

PUBLIC INPUT Mr. Burns apologized for missing the April 17th public meeting due 
to a conflicting prior commitment. Mr. Burns expressed 
disappointment that SOS Recovery Center was not selected for 
CDBG funding in FY 2018-2019. He discussed that SOS Recovery 
operates on a shoestring budget and expects a significant increase 
in clients due to the closure of the Rochester Community Recovery 
Center that had been operated by Frisbie Memorial Hospital. He 
also mentioned that state funding available may be reduced for 
SOS Recovery Center in the near future. 
 
Councilor Lauterborn expressed the committee’s support and 
gratitude for SOS Recovery Center and its services but explained 
that CDBG funding is limited that unfortunately not all applicants 
can receive grant awards. Councilor Gray added that the city has 
supported the Rochester Community Recovery Center in the past 
through non-CDBG funds. 



ROCHESTER YOUTH 
SPIRIT – Cheer 
Practice Space 
Request 

Ms. Grondin explained that Rochester Youth Spirit is an 
organization formed by former cheerleaders to provide a 
competitive, rec-level cheerleading program for Rochester youth. 
The program does three competitions per year. Ms. Grondin 
mentioned that all of the adult program leaders are former high-
level competitive cheerleaders and cheer instructors and that 
Rochester Youth Spirit is a member of the Greater Rochester 
Chamber of Commerce. 

Rochester Youth Spirit is seeking gymnasium and practice space for 
the program but has been encountering roadblocks in obtaining 
adequate access to space. Ms. Grondin stated that Rochester 
Middle School has allowed the organization access to some space, 
but given the size of the program and number of students, more 
space is needed. Ms. Lavoie added that the program has helped 
many youth to not only develop athletic skills but also important 
social developmental skills. Ms. Lavoie also stated that indoor 
practice space is needed as outdoor space is too dangerous for the 
youth. 

Councilor Gray explained that City Council has control over the 
Rochester Recreation Department but that the School Board has 
authority over the schools. Councilor Gray asked if Rochester Youth 
Spirit has talked to the Recreation Department, and Ms. Grondin 
replied that they have but the Recreation Department is concerned 
about the space that would be required for the practice mats. 
Councilor Gray suggested that Rochester Youth Spirit approach the 
district superintendent to discuss possible space at the schools; Mr. 
Long said he would provide an email introduction to 
Superintendent Hopkins. Councilor Lauterborn also said that the 
committee would discuss the space issue with the Rochester 
Recreation Department Director Chris Bowlen. 

TRI-CITY VOLUNTEER 
DRIVER PROGRAM 

Mr. Donald handed out TripLink Community Transportation 
Directory pamphlets to the committee members. The directory 
helps community members become familiar with the various 
transportation options available in the region. Mr. Donald 
explained that there is an Exeter group that organizes free 
community transportation provided by volunteer drivers using their 
own vehicles and that COAST is exploring the possibility of 
operating a similar program in the tri-city region of Rochester, 
Somersworth, and Dover. A community advisory committee has 



been formed of members from all three cities, including various 
social service agencies and the public housing authorities. 
 
Mr. Donald stated that COAST is able to cover the costs for the 
program for its first year but will need support from the three 
communities for future years. He anticipates annual costs of $5,000 
to $10,000 per year to maintain the program. 
 
Councilor Lauterborn asked if the tri-city volunteer driver program 
will provide services in addition to what are already in the TripLink 
Community Transportation Directory. Mr. Donald said that it will 
provide additional services not already provided by other 
organizations or programs. Councilor Hutchinson asked what the 
program costs are spent on as the drivers are volunteers. Mr. 
Donald replied that funding covers administrative expenses, 
insurance coverage, background checks, defensive driver training, 
mileage reimbursements, and other such costs. 
 
Councilor Lauterborn asked how the program is being funded in its 
first year. Mr. Donald replied that federal funding is supporting the 
program’s first year and that, after the first year, the cities’ funding 
will be used as continuing matching funds for federal grants. The 
program is planned to begin October 1, 2018. 
 
Ms. Holstein stated that many of the region’s hospitals and social 
service agencies are reporting that many residents are experiencing 
difficulties in obtaining transportation. 

BRIDGING THE GAPS - 
Updates 

Ms. Perron explained that Bridging the Gaps is a community 
coalition focused on youth substance misuse prevention using 
evidence-based prevention methodology.  Currently, Bridging the 
Gaps is supported by a federal grant that runs through the end of 
the 2018 federal year, and the coalition coordinator position is paid 
via the grant and housed within the Rochester Police Department. 
Ms. Perron said that the coalition’s data shows that youth use of 
substances has dropped over the years and that youth’s perception 
of the risk of using substance has gone up over the years. 
 
Ms. Perron presented a proposal for a Rochester Teen 
Empowerment Center that would provide a safe, welcoming space 
for Rochester youth as a deterrent to substance use. Such a space 
would also provide space for interns to work for Bridging the Gaps. 
 



Councilor Lauterborn asked if there is not already a teen drop-in 
center. Councilor Bogan said that there was the Rochester Youth 
Reach facility on Wakefield Street and closed quickly. Ms. Holstein 
explained that the Wakefield Street facility was specifically aimed 
at homeless youth and did not receive many visits due to youth’s 
fears of being reported to the Division of Children, Youth, and 
Families. There were also safety concerns regarding the Wakefield 
Street facility. 
 
Ms. Stanley praised Ms. Perron’s skills and talents as coalition 
coordinator and said, if there was adequate space for Bridging the 
Gaps, Ms. Perron would be able to recruit many qualified interns 
from the University of New Hampshire. Councilor Bogan asked if 
there isn’t space at the Community Center. Mr. Long suggested the 
former office for the School Department’s Families in Transition 
Coordinator at the Community Center. 
 
Ms. Stanley stated that Bridging the Gaps is speaking with the 
Rochester Housing Authority regarding whether the Roberge 
Center would be available now that the Rochester Community 
Recovery Center is closing. Ms. Stanley thinks Bridging the Gaps 
might be able to get the building space for a discount but not for 
free. She stressed the cost savings for the Rochester community of 
investing in prevention efforts versus the costliness of later 
recovery efforts. 
 
Councilor Lauterborn asked when funding for the program ends. 
Ms. Perron replied that the grant ends in September 2018 but that 
funding for her salary is covered through 2019. Mr. Long also 
mentioned that there is another federal grant application for which 
Bridging the Gaps has applied but that it would cover only a small 
portion of Ms. Perron’s salary. 

FY 2018-2019 CDBG 
ANNUAL ACTION PLAN 
- Updates 

Mr. Long stated that the FY 2018-2019 CDBG grant allocation from 
the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development will be 
$290,637. Councilor Lauterborn expressed concerns about the large 
amount allocated to Tri-City Co-op ($8,685.05), which was not 
anticipated to be so high when the committee voted on 
contingency plans. Councilor Hutchinson suggested splitting the 
extra public service agency funds between Tri-City Co-op and SOS 
Recovery Center. 
 



Motion was made by Councilor Gray and seconded by Councilor 
Hutchison to amend the adopted FY 2018-2019 CDBG annual 
action plan to provide an additional $1,000 in public service 
agency funds to Cross Roads House, $3,685.05 to Tri-City Co-op, 
and $5,000 to SOS Recovery Center. The motion passed 
unanimously. 

PROGRAM REPORT – 
Current CDBG 
Projects, Continuing 
CDBG Projects, JOB 
Loan Program Report, 
Non-CDBG Grants 

Mr. Long provided a brief overview of CDBG related activities, 
including a lead poisoning prevention workshop held on May 11th. 
Councilor Bogan praised the workshop and its presentation of 
information and suggested that a similar presentation be provided 
to a joint meeting between the Rochester City Council and 
Rochester School Department. Councilor Bogan also mentioned 
that the state lead poisoning prevention agency will be invited to 
the upcoming Wings and Wheels event to provide information and 
lead testing. 

WORKFORCE 
HOUSING CHARRETTE 

Mr. Long stated that the charrette dates will be September 26th 
and September 28th, held at the Rochester Performing Arts Center. 
Mr. Long also stated that there is now a Facebook page for the 
charrette and that publicity for the charrette will be ramping up 
within the next few months. 

OTHER BUSINESS Councilor Hutchinson mentioned that the Tri-City Homelessness 
Task Force will be meeting next on June 7th at 6 p.m. in 
Somersworth. 

 
The meeting was adjourned at 9:24 p.m. 
 
Next Meeting – Monday, June 11, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. in Isinglass Conference Room in 
the City Hall Annex (33 Wakefield Street) 
Topics –Projects Program Report, Workforce Housing Charrette 
 






